UNITED NATIONS

tCONOMIC
SOCIAL COUNCIL &=~

BULRRRLRRRRA N R RO ey

Distr.
GENERAL

E/CN.L4/SR.4k46
19 April 1954

CRIGINAL: ENGLISH

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS
Tenth Session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FOUR HUNDRED AND FORTY-SIXTH MEETING

Held at Headquarters, New York,
on Wednesday, 24 March 195k, at 11 a.m.

CONTENTS
Draft international covenants on human rights and measures of
implementation: clauses relating to the admissibility and
non-admissibility of reservations (E/24L47, E/CN.4/677 and 696,
E/CN.4/L.345, 348-351) (continued)

54-09253
(11 p.)



E/CN.4/SR.LL6

English
Page 2
PRESENT :
Chairman: Mr. AZMI (Egypt)
Rapporteur: Mr. INGLES Philippines
Members: Mr. WHITLAM Australia
Mr. NISCT Belgium
Mr. ORTEGA Chile
Mr. CHENG PAQONAN China
Mr. GHORBAL Egypt
Mr. JUVIGNY France
Mr. CARAYANNIS Greece
Mr. DAYAL India
Mr. RIZK Lebanon
Mr. TYABJI Pakisgtan
Mr. BIRECKI Poland
Mr. ASIROGLU Turkey
Mr. SAPOZHNTKOV Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic
Mr. MOROZOV Union of Soviet Socialist Republies
Mr. HOARE United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland
Mrs. LORD United States of America
Mr. MONTERO BUSTAMANTE Uruguay
Representatives of specialized agencies:
Mr. MANNING International Labour Organisation
Mr. ARNALDO United Nations Educational, Seientific
and Cultural Organization
Representatives of non-governmental organizations:
Category B:
Mr. JOFTES Co-ordinating Board of Jewish
Organizations
Mr. JACOBY World Jewish Congress
Mrs. POLSTEIN ) World Union for Progressive Judaism
Mr. RONALDS )
Mr. PENCE World's Alliance of Young Men's

Christian Associations



E/CN.4/3R
English
Page 3
PRESENT: (cont'd)
Seeretariat: Mr. HUMPHREY Director of the Divisicn cf
Human Rights
Mr. SCHWELB Deputy Director of the Divisicn of
Human Rights
Mrs. BRUCE ) Secretaries of the Commission

Mr. DAS )



B/CN.L/SR.WU6E
English
Page L

DRAFT TINTERNATIONAL COVENANTS ON HUMAN RIGHTS AND MEASURES OF IMPLEMELTATION:

CIAUSES RELATING TO THE ALMISSIBILITY AND NON-ADMISSIBILITY OF RESERVATIONS
(E/2L47, E/CN.4/677 and 696, E/CN.4/L.345, 34B-351) (continued)

Mr. SAPOZHNIKOV (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that no one
could deny that under international law the sovereign right to make reservations
to treatics was precisely as great as the sovereign right to conclude treaties.
There had alsc been general recognition of the desirability of admitting
reservations to the covenants in order to obtain as many ratifications as possible
by enabling States which objected to some of the articles to accede with
reservations. Scme delegations had, however, interpreted the legal consequences
of reservations in a manner inconsistent with the prineinle of national
sovereignty. Paragraph 1 of the United Kingdom draft article (E/CN.L/T.3L5)
recognized that any State might make reservations but went on to restrict them to
gart IIT of the covenant while paragraph 4 added the proviso that two-thirds of
the States parties must accept them. The Soviet Union and Polish representatives
nad already shown the unsoundness of such a concept; it need only be added that
the United Kingdom proposal would deprive States of their scovereign right to make
vhat reservations they deemed fit.

The vwrocess of drafting the covenants in the Commissicn on Human Rights and
in the General Assembly had shown the need for reservations. The articles had

e Tcla
(SRS

adoptcd by megjority vobe,; ihie ouly way in which the minority, which still

%}

objected to certain articles, could accede to the covenants was by the use of
reservations.

QObviously, the country making such reservations could hardly anticipate
that the majority, wvhether a simple or a two-thirds majority, would subsequently
agree to accept them. Thus, if the United Kingdom proposal were adopted,
States in the dissenting mincority would be faced with the following alternative:
either to withdraw their reservations and accede to the covenant despite their
discgreement, or not to accede to the covenant at all.

The Philippine delegation's approach was scmewhat different from that of
the United Kingdom delegation. It felt that the article should be based on the



E/CN.4/SR.Lk6
English
Page 9

principles stated in the International Court of Justice's Advisory Opinion on
Reservations to the Convention on the Prevention and Punishment of ihe Crime of
Genocide (28 May 1951). That approach was as contradictory as the Opinion
itself. The Court had based its Opinion on the ccnsideration that as many
‘States as possible should participate in & humanitarian convention end that the
contracting parties had the right to make reservations even if no specific
reservations clause existed, but it had also decided that the same majority which
had rejected the minority's original proposals should be permitted to determine
whether a reservation was incompatible with the object and purpose of the
convention. The Court had held that a State might be excluded from a convention
because it had been compelled to make such a reservation, but it had suggested no
criteria to determine incompatibility. The contradiction was insoluble, because
only a sovereign State itself could decide the conditious on which it would accede
to a convention. The proposal to place on the International Court of Justice the
responsibility of determining what reservations were admissible must be rejected,
for neither the Court nor any other international organ could be asked to decide
on a matter which was the prerogative of a sovereign State. He agreed with the
Soviet Union delegation's view that if reservations were made, a convention
should, in relations between the States which had made the reservation and all
other States parties,; be deemed to be in forece in respect of all its provisions

except those in regard to which the reservations had been made.

Mr. INGLES (Philippines) said that the Ukrainian representative's
objection to the Philippine position was based mainly on the alleged contradictory
nature of the Advisory Opinion. That Opinion summed up all the arguments that
had been advanced for the admissibility or non-admissibility of reservations to
the Genocide Convention, which were similar to those adduced with respect to the
covenants. The Opinion then sought to find a compromige between two extreme
views, namely, that reservations could not be admitted if the integrity of the
convention was to be maintained and that reservations must be admitted if the
sovereign right of the States parties to accede with whatever reservations they
deemed fit were to be conceded in order.to obtain as many ratifications as
Possible. The Court's rejoinder to the type of argument advanced by the Ukrainian
representative was given succinctly on page 24 of the Advisory Opinion (I.C.J.
Reports 1951). 1In particular, the Court held that "it is obvious that so extreme
an application of the idea of State sovereignty could lead to a complete disregard

of the object and purpose of the Convention".



E/CN.4/SR.446
English
Page 6

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Scviet Socialist R-publics) said that the
United Kingdom propusal was inconsistent with the general views expressed by
the United Kingdcm representative, who, if he were to be logical - a remark
which applicd alse to the Philippine representative - would have to oppose
reservations of any kind to the draft covenant on civil and political rights.
Yet the lofty principles which the United Kingdcm representative considered

inviclable were enunciated in that very part of the draft covenant - part 11T

to which he would permit reservations to be made. As there was no reascn of
principle to allow reservations to that part alone, the reason must be of a
rore practical nature: it was no doubt that part that contained provisions
unacccptable to the United Kingdem.  Moreover, there was no ground to think
that reservations to part 111 would bear on such unimportant points as tne
United Kingdcm representative had indicated. The United Kingdom proposal
vlzinly constituted a method of permitting some States to make the reservations
they found necessary and preventing other States from following the same course.
Furthermore, the United Kipgdcm representative should be opposed to
reservations bvecause he took the view that ratification of the draft couvenant
would mean surrender of a State's sovereignty where human rights were concerned;
reservabions would then be tantamount to a partial retaining of sovereignty
by indirect means.

In hils uwhn View, @ reservation was an act whereby a State asserted its

sovereler righl to enter into treaties and fn determine the terms of those
treaties. That was an accepted principle of classical international law,
which no cre had denied. In gigning any international treaty and voluntarily

accepting obligations deriving frcm it, a State exercised its sovereign will.
A State which ratified the draft covenant would, of its own accord, assume the
obligation to improve the lot of its people; it would not, contrary to the
claims of the United Kingdcm representative, surrender one jot of its
sovereignty by so doing.

The United Kingdom representative had suggested that under the USSR
amendment (E/CN.4/L.349) each State would in effect be writing the terms of its

own covenant. That wus cbviously incorrect for mo State would be able tc write



E/CN.4/SR.LLE
English
Page 7T

any new provisions into the covenant; at most, some States would accept limited
obligations with regard to some of the existing provisions. The covenant
would neither become a laughing stock nor have a different meaning for each
State, as some representatives had claimed. The procedure advocated by the
USSR had been followed in the past, without any of the difficulties which some
representatives appeared to apprehend, and there was no reason to think that

the situation with regard to the draft covenant would be any different.

The provision in the United Kingdom proposal that reservations must be
accepted by two-thirds of the States parties to the covenant was unrealistic,
gince many of the controversial articles of the covenant had been adopted by
very small majorities. The result might well be tc delay the covenant's entry
into force indefinitely, to say nothing of postponing or preventing ratification
by all Member States, which was the goal to be sought.

He had not yet had time to study the text of the Jjoint proposal (B/CN.L/L.351)
but was prepared to make some preliminary remarks on that text as explained at
earlier meetings by the Philippine representative. The suthors of the text
were aware of the inadequacies of the United Kingdom propesal, but in their
endeavour to make the covenant acceptable to a larger nuwmber of States they
fell back on the decision of the International Court of Justice with regard to
the Convention on Genocide. While the Court had quite properly held that States
should not be deterred from ratifying that Convention, it had made the
admissibility of reservations contingent on a vague criterion - that of
compatibility with the purpose and object of the Convention - which it had
wisely forborne from defining. Where the draft covenant was concerned, the
definition would be even more difficult to establish. Furthermore, the Court
had left it to States to decide whether or not a reservation to the Convention
on Genocide should be accepted. Under the joint proposal, the Court would be
asked to take the decision; whereas in his opinion, the Court was not competent
to settle such problewms. _ |

Although the joint proposal did not limit reservations to part IIT of the
draft covenant, as did the United Kingdom proposal, it too represented an attempt

to impose on States terms which they might not be ready to accept, The joint
proposal was therefore not acceptable, no more than was the United Kingdom text.



BE/CN.L4/SR . LL6
English
Page 8

His delegation therefore maintained its amendment which was bacsed on
generally recognized principles of international law and was designed to permit

the greatest number of States to ratify the draft covenant.

Mr. WHITLAM (Australia) stated that his delegation yielded to none in
itz respect Tor the principles of international law. Nevertheless, it considered
that those principles must be interpreted in the context of historical
developments and it agreed with the widely held view that internationzl law was
but one of several valuable and important instruments of service to the modern
world. The Australian delegation did not consider that any violation of the
principies of classical international law was involved in making some concessions
to the ~ollectivity of the States which might become parties to the covenants.

The debate had shown that the majority of the Commission recognized the

-
audiiiroart

]

oy

ility of reservations. Once that idea was admitted, however, the
difficulty arose of determining the extent and nature of admissible reservations.

4s the "United Kingdom representative had pointed cut, it would hardly be possible

ot

o estabiish a hierarchy of articles and to decide that reservations weouid be
admissinlie in recpect of some and inadmissible in respect of others. In that
connexion, the Australian delegation agreed with the United Kingdom
representative’s concept of a community of treaty-making States bound by common
interests and corporate feelings of fellowship. That concept did not entail
abrogation ol soverelgnty, as the UbbK representative had 1mplied; on the
contrasry, by acoepting that concept, the parties would mark their recognition of
the need to make concessions to the group, of the interdependence of the
contemporary international community and of the fact that peace and security
could be achieved only by determined efforts to promote the economie and social
advancement of all peoples, in accordance with the Charter. Peace was indeed
one and indivisible and the responsibility for maintaining peace rested with all
nations, individually end collectively. Signatories of the covenants would be

States which felt that strong bond of community with others.



E/CN.L/SR.Lh6
English
Page O

The Fhilippine representative .  htly observed that the advisory opinien
of the International Court of Justice on reservations to the Conventiocn on
Genocide, although undeniably limited in scope, touched on all the principal
questions with which the Commission was confronted with regard to reservations
to the covenants. Tr_ majority opinion of the Court rervecented an attempt
to take the middle rosd between the two extreme points of view. Neverthelecs,

o i keI e St T
FL aLl =1 Cl‘:ll_.L.'Ll;t‘; [=N WY

the guestion remained how the cbjects and purposes c g

such
detailed multilateral instruments as the covenants could be defined. The

United Kiungdom prorosal provided a more satisfactory and easier solution of the
problem and was f—ther justified by the fact that the Court itself had decided
that one matter - the problem of asylum - would be better solved without judicial
action but by negotiations between the parties concerned. The example of the
problem of asylum showed what could be achieved by patient negotiationz hetween
sovereign States acting with determination to reach agreewent, in a spirit of
understanding.

The single judge of the Court who had submitted a dicsserting cpinion had
taken the position that neither the view that reservations, to be valid, wmust be
accepted by all the contracting States nor the view, zccepted by the Court, that
reservations were inadmissible if they were not comratible with the aims and
objects of the Convention was satisfactory, since the reserving States could
argue that their reservations were compatible with those aims and ob jects and
the objecting States might allege the opposite, but he had pointed out that the
Court, if it were obliged to settle the disputes, would find itself so
overburdened with controversies that its functions would be utterly dictortez.
That opinion was a further argument in favour of leaving the parties to zettle
disputes among themselves and resorting toc the Court on questions of prineciple
only. On such questions of principle, the apﬁroach to the Court might well be

through the Economic and Social Council.

Mr. JUVIGNY (France), commenting on the four-FPower draft articie
(E/CN.&[L.ﬁﬁl), observed that the provision in paragraph 1 that reservations
might be made to any part of the covenant was unacceptahle to hiz delepation, Ton

the reasons he had given in his remarxs on the United Kingdom proposal that



E/CI.L/SR.LL6
Inglish
TFape 10

regervacions should be limited to the provisions of part TIT of the covenant.
secondly, paragraphs 2 and 3 of the joint draft gave States the discretionary
powver of objecting to reservations and of referring disputes concerning the
compatibility of reservatione with the object and purpose of the covenant to
the International Court of Justice; +the fact that the procedure was optional
left a gap in the mechanism. Thirdly, the procedure outlined in paragraph 3
would lead, not to the closely knit community of States envisaged by the
United Kingdom representative, but to the formation of a multiplicity of
conflicting groups, some of which would accept certain reservations while
ob jecting to others. In practice, the contracting States would be parties to
an infinite number of covenants. Such a situation would not be propitious to
the stability of obligations under the covenant or to the orderly development
of Jurisprudence on the hasis of the articles of the covenant. Moreover,
the practical conseguences of such a procedure would militate against the
principle of the universality of the covenants, which had been so staunchly
defended by some of the sponsors of the draft.

TFourthly, the procedure proposed in paragraph L would give rise to

considerable confusion. For example, if eighteen States accepted a reservation

ct
]

e NS ARk e R e ACANEUGR O R s e (e R e i T
So OW cted to 1%, the rescx VLIg Ctate id the GCtates EJ.l_'Cc.‘p'tl'ﬂE,

the recervation would consider that the reserving State was a party to the

he reservation to the

3

H
ot
i-h

-

;s if, however, the objecting Btates referred t
Internaticnal Court and if the Court decided that the reservation was not
compativle with the objects and purposes of the covenant, the reserving State
and the States which had accepted the reservation would be bound, as self-
considered parties to the covenant, to a reservation which had been pronocunced
incompatible with the object and purpose of that instrument.

Fifthly, the draft article contained the same shortcoming as the
United Kingdom proposal: mnamely, that once a reservation had been pronounced
to be compatible with the object and purpose of the covenant, it would not be
incumbent on the reserving State to take any further action or to make any

effort to remove the cause of the reservation.



E/CN.L/SR LS
English
Page 11

Finally, he drew attention t. crticles Lk, 46 and L7 of the draft covensnt,
which provided for recourse to the International Court of Justice. The questicn
of reservations could not be interpreted as falling within the purview of
article 47, but in view of the fact that the provisione of raragraph 3 of thre
Jjoint draft were discretionary the sponsors might usefully consider how the
provisions of *hat article could be combined with those of paragraph 3 of their

proposal.

Mr., NISOT (Belgium) pointed out that the multiplicity to which the
French represeuv..ive had referred was the natural consequence of all
reservations and applied equally to the United Kingdom and the four-Fower draft
articles.
He did not consider that there was any justification Tor the discreticnary
provision in the last phrase of paragraph 4 of the joint draft. States
accepting reservations must of necessity consider that the reserving State was

a party to the covenant.

Mr. JUVIGNY (France) agreed that a certain mnltiplicity was the
natural effect of the admission of reservations. Nevertheless, in view of ths
vast scope of the covenants, it seemed to be essential to place scme vestriction
on reservations, as was done in the United Kingdom draft by the svstem of

acceptance by two-thirds of the parties.

Mr. HOARE (United Kingdom) said that the confusion rightly deploved by
the French representative arose from paragraph 4 of the joint draft article,
which divided States parties into separate and unrelated groups. The
United Kingdom draft contained no such provision, but furniched a safepguard

against the danger of multiplicity.

The meeting rose at 1 p.m.






